
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

           JANUARY 21, 2014 

CANCELLED



Table of Contents

Agenda 2
Public Hearing and Action on Proposed Appropriation and
Expenditure of Funds for "Project Jessica"

Cover-Project Jessica 4
Project Jessica Resolution 5

Presentation by Keith Letchworth, East Carolina Behavioral
Health, regarding NC 2-1-1

Cover Sheet NC 2-1-1 7
Approval of NC Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF)
Assurance For Grant Application

Basic Facts and Assurances 8
Project Costs 10
Site Plan 11

Appointments to Board of Adjustment
Board of Adjustment Appointment Form 12

Appointment to Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Senior Citizens Board Appointment Form 13

Appointment to Library Board
Library Board Appointment Form 14

Approval of January 6, 2014 Minutes
January 6 Minutes 15

Consideration of Amendment to Board Minutes of June 3, 2013
June 3 Amendment to Minutes 39

Budget Amendments
Budget Amendment 40

Lottery application - reallocate residual funds from closed
projects to the JPK/Moyock Elementary School cafeteria roof
replacements

Application for Lottery 58
Award Contract for Walnut Island Asphalt Overlay Project

Walnut Island Project Memo 60
RPC Contract 61

Award Engineering Contract for Ocean Sands Water and Sewer
District (OSWSD) Wastewater Expansion Environmental
Assessment

OSWSD EA Memo 78
OSWSD EA Contract 79

Right of Entry and License Agreement for Mud Run
Mud Run Right of Entry 105

TDA Budget Amendments
TDA Budget Amendment 110

1

CANCELLED



Document last changed: 1/17/2014 8:53 AM 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda 

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

Date: Tuesday, January 21, 2014 Time: 7:00 PM 

Work Session 

6:00 PM Moyock Small Area Plan 

7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation – Reverend Walter Gallop, Air Force Chaplain, Retired
B) Pledge of Allegiance
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda;
please limit comments to 3 minutes.

Administrative Reports 

A) Presentation by Keith Letchworth, East Carolina Behavioral Health,
regarding NC 2-1-1

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action on Proposed Appropriation and
Expenditure of Funds for "Project Jessica"

New Business 

A) Approval of NC Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) Assurance
For Grant Application

B) Board Appointments:
1. Appointments to Board of Adjustment
2. Appointment to Senior Citizens Advisory Board
3. Appointment to Library Board

2

CANCELLED



Document last changed: 1/17/2014 8:53 AM 

C) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of January 6, 2014 Minutes
2. Consideration of Amendment to Board Minutes of June 3, 2013
3. Budget Amendments
4. Lottery application - reallocate residual funds from closed projects

to the JPK/Moyock Elementary School cafeteria roof replacements
5. Award Contract for Walnut Island Asphalt Overlay Project
6. Award Engineering Contract for Ocean Sands Water and Sewer

District (OSWSD) Wastewater Expansion Environmental
Assessment

7. Right of Entry and License Agreement for Mud Run
D) Commissioner’s Report
E) County Manager’s Report

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

A) TDA Budget Amendments

Adjourn 

3

CANCELLED



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Public Hearing and Action on Authorization of Incentives for “Project Jessica” 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

The Board of Commissioners will consider action to match a One North Carolina Grant from the NC 
Department of Commerce to extend utility services and provide a cash grant to “Project Jessica” in 
exchange for a $925,000 capital investment and the creation of 60 jobs by 2017.  

Board Action Requested 

Action 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Peter Bishop 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Peter Bishop 4

CANCELLED



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING INCENTIVES CONTRACT 
WITH “PROJECT JESSICA”  

WHEREAS, Section 158-7.1 of the General Statutes of North Carolina authorizes a 
county to undertake an economic development project by extending assistance to a company in 
order to cause the company to locate or expand its operations within the county; and  

WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners held a public hearing on 
January 21, 2014 to receive public comments regarding Currituck County, (the “County”), 
participation in an economic development project with “Project Jessica,” by reimbursing “Project 
Jessica” for the cost of connecting to county wastewater services and supplying additional funds 
in the form of a cash grant, to satisfy the required local match for the North Carolina Department 
of Commerce’s award of a OneNC Grant to “Project Jessica”; and  

WHEREAS,   “Project Jessica” will rehabilitate an existing building in the County to 
serve as the company’s corporate headquarters, making an investment of at least $925,000 and  
creating at least 60 new, permanent full-time jobs in the County; and  

WHEREAS, as proposed “Project Jessica” will stimulate, diversify and help stabilize the 
local economy, promote business in the county, and result in the creation of a substantial number 
of jobs in the County; and 

WHEREAS,   the Currituck County Board of Commissioners will adopt an amendment to 
the County’s budget ordinance appropriating the funds necessary for the project;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD 
OF COMMISSIONERS THAT:  

1) The County is authorized to expend up to $120,000 of County funds for “Project
Jessica.”

2) This resolution and expenditure of funds are contingent on the execution of an
incentives contract between the County and “Project Jessica” outlining specific job-
creation milestones and financial clawbacks should “Project Jessica” fail to meet
obligations.

3) The Chairman of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners is authorized to
execute the incentives contract and any other documents necessary to the project on
behalf of the County.

4) Due to the competitive and confidential nature of “Project Jessica,” and the specific
rules of the OneNC Fund, no public announcements shall be made by the County
until first announced and provided by the Governor of North Carolina or his designee.

5

CANCELLED



Adopted this ______ day of January, 2014 

S. Paul O'Neal, Chairman 
Currituck County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

(COUNTY SEAL) 

6

CANCELLED



Agenda Item Title 

Currituck County 
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Presentation by Keith Letchworth, East Carolina Behavioral Health, regarding NC 2-1-1 

Brief Description of Agenda Item 

NC 2-1-1 is a statewide database of community resources that is searchable by county and category of service.  
ECBH is working with United Way North Carolina to make the Community Services Information Line, 2-1-1, 
available thoughout its service area, including Currituck County, in 2014.   

Board Action Requested 

Information 

Person Submitting Agenda Item 

Mary Gilbert 

Presenter of Agenda Item 

Keith Letchworth 

7

CANCELLED



7

N.C. Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF)
2013-14 Basic Facts and Assurances

Local Government Name:  Currituck County
County: Currituck

Federal Employer I.D. Number:  56- 6000292

Local Government’s Contact Person for the Grant:
Name: Mr. Jason Weeks

Title: Director of Parks and Recreation

Organization: Currituck County

Address: 153 Courthouse Road

City/State/Zip: Currituck, NC 27929

Telephone: 252-232-3007

E-mail: Jason.weeks@currituckcountync.gov

Local Government Manager:
Name: Mr. Daniel Scanlon

Title: County Manager

Address: 153 Courthouse Road

City/State/Zip: Currituck, NC 27929

Telephone: 252-232-3007

E-mail: Daniel.scanlon@currituckcountync.gov

Chief Elected Official:

Name: Mr. S. Paul O'Neal

Title: Chairman of Board of County Commissioners

Address: 153 Courthouse Road

City/State/Zip: Currituck, NC 27929

Type of project:

Acquisition

Development

Acquisition and Development

Site Control:

X  Owned by local government

  Owned by school board

  Leased by applicant for 25 years or more

  Easement

Costs rounded to nearest dollar:

PARTF funds requested:         $ 250,000

Local government’s
matching funds: $ 1,984,920

Total cost of project $ $2,234,920

Recreation Resources Service (RRS) regional consultant: Steve Moler

Short title of project: Community Park Phase 2

Provide a brief description of the project: Construction of a new bocce ball court, horseshoe pits,
(3) baseball/softball fields, 0.68 mile trail/sidewalk, landscaping, and park infrastructure.

8

CANCELLED



8

Approval by local governing board: (The local governing board must approve this certification.)
I hereby certify the information contained in the attached application is true and correct and the required dollar-for-

dollar matching funds will be available during the project period.

Adopted this day of (give date):

Chief Elected Official:   __________________________________       ________________________
(Signature) (Print or Type Name and Title)

(For applications sponsored by two or more local governments, or a local government and school administrative
unit, one copy of this form must be completed and signed by each applicant.  One of the local governments

must be identified as the primary sponsor in the “Applicant” section at the top of this page.)

9

CANCELLED



12

Project Costs
Community Park Phase 2-Currituck County

January 2014
Project Elements (Include specific units - sizes,

numbers, lengths, etc. - for each item.) Unit Unit
Cost

Total
Item Cost

Building Costs

Bocce Ball Court 1 $2,000 $2,420

Horseshoe Pits Lump
Sum $1,500 $1,650

Walking Trail -  5’,6’, and 8' wide, paved accessible trail 3,600
linear ft.

$60 /
linear foot $216,000

Baseball/Softball field with furnishings ( natural grass
fields, team benches, dugouts, backstop, fencing,
bleachers, bases, foul poles)

3 $310,200/
field $930,600

Baseball/Softball field lighting and irrigation systems
including wells to supply irrigation

Lump
Sum $713,350 $713,350

Landscaping (trees) Lump
Sum $14,600 $14,600

Site Preparation (clearing, grading, storm system, and
erosion control)

Lump
Sum $356,300 $356,300

Costs  to Develop the Project $2,234,920

Contingency for the Cost of Building

Contingency 0% $0

Construction management, site planning, preliminary
design, survey, and the cost of preparing the application 0% $0

Total Project Cost $2,234,920

Total PARTF Grant Request $250,000

Total Local Match $1,984,920

10

CANCELLED



Facsimile- 704 -521-8955
Telephone- 704-521-9880

www.sitesolutionspa.com

Civil Engineering

Site Planning

023

Charlotte, NC 28208
W. Morehead Street

2

Landscape Architecture

0 120 240

January 31, 2014

Applicant:

PARTF Grant Site Plan

Community Park

Barco, North Carolina 27917
Currituck County

Maple Parkway
Phase 2

11

CANCELLED



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Unexpired Term
Donna McCloud-Alternate District 1 Vance Aydlett 6/17/2013 12/31/2014

1st Term
Shay Ballance-Alternate District 2 David Griggs 2/18/2013 12/31/2015

1st Term
Theresa Dozier* District 3 Butch Petrey 3/7/2011 12/31/2013

1st Term
David Palmer* District 4 Kevin McCord 4/18/2011 12/31/2013

1st Term
Cameron Tabor* District 5 Marion Gilbert 2/21/2011 12/31/2013

1st Term
Mike Painter At Large Paul Martin 8/20/12 12/31/2014

1st Term
Vivian Simpson At-Large Paul O'Neal 1/17/2012 12/31/2014

* May Be Reappointed

12

CANCELLED



SENIOR CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD
2 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Heidi Montalbine District 1 Vance Aydlett 2/20/12 1st       3/1/2015

Edith Meekins District 2 David Griggs 7/15/2013 1st      7/20/2016

Rose Wright District 3 Butch Petrey 5/20/13 2nd       3/15/2016

Doris Ballance District 4 Kevin McCord 10/7/2013 2nd        9/7/2016

Rosalie Rose* District 5 Marion Gilbert 2/21/2011 2nd        2/1/2014
Unexpired Term

Marcia Steele** At-Large Paul Martin 7/5/2011              2/1/2014
Unexpired Term

Joanne DiBello At-Large Paul O'Neal 6/4/2012 4/15/2014

* To Be Replaced
** May be Reappointed

Commissioner Martin

13

CANCELLED



LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
4 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Shelly Haskell* District 1 Vance Aydlett 6/17/2013 1st       6/30/2017

Dr. Norman Dahm** District 2 David Griggs 5/18/2009 2nd       6/30/2013

Colleen Umphlett District 3 Butch Petrey 6/17/2013 1st       6/30/2017

Joann DiBello District 4 Kevin McCord 6/17/2013  2nd      6/30/2017

Lisa Rose District 5 Marion Gilbert 6/17/2013 2nd       6/30/2017

George Gregory At-Large Paul Martin 6/17/2013 2nd       6/30/2017

Rhonda Cheek At-Large Paul O'Neal 6/2010 6/30/2014

Dr. Alison Boone-Heyder 9/2/2008 1st       6/30/2012

**To Be Replaced
George Gregory appt. to EARL 7/16/2012

14

CANCELLED



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
January 6, 2014 

The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic 
Courthouse in the Board Meeting Room with the following members present: Vice-Chair Paul 
Martin, Commissioners Aydlett, Gilbert, Griggs, McCord and Petrey.   Chairman Paul O’Neal 
was absent. 

Vice-Chairman Martin called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 

A) Invocation

Father Jim McGee, St. Luke’s Episcopal Mission, gave the invocation. 

B) Pledge of Allegiance

Father Jim McGee, St. Luke’s Episcopal Mission, led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

C) Approval of Agenda

Vice-Chairman Martin moved Consent Agenda, Item #3, Award Contracts for Landscaping 
Maintenance, to Item A) under New Business; and added Consent Agenda, Item #10, Budget 
Amendment.   Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Agenda as amended.  
Commissioner McCord seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

APPROVED AGENDA 

7:00 pm Call to Order 

A) Invocation – Father Jim McGee, St. Luke’s Episcopal Mission
B) Pledge of Allegiance
C) Approval of Agenda
D) Public Comment

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular agenda; please limit comments to 3
minutes.

Administrative Reports 

A ) Presentation by Wheeler Family

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 88-66 The Villages at Ocean Hill: Request to amend a sketch plan
and use permit to remove lot 273 from the Planned Unit Development, Tax Map 114, Parcel 3R,
Poplar Branch Township.

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-29 TFP, LLC:  Request for a conditional rezoning from SFO
(Single Family Outer Banks) and PUD Overlay to CD-GB (Conditional District – General Business),
Tax Map 114, Parcels 3R and 20, Poplar Branch Township.

C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-27 Troy Moser:  Request for a use permit to operate a pawn
shop in Moyock at 417A Caratoke Highway, Moyock Shopping Plaza, Tax Map 9A, Parcel 55,
Moyock Township.

15

CANCELLED



2 January 6, 2014 

D) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing:  Request for a preliminary plat/use permit for
90 residential lots in a conservation subdivision located in Moyock on the north side of Shingle Landing
Road approximately 260 feet east of Fox Lane, Tax Map 9, Parcel 41, Moyock Township.

E) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-23 Charles Perry:  Request for a use permit to operate automobile
sales in Grandy at 6331, 6333, and 6335 Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 94, Parcel 135B, Poplar Branch
Township.

New Business 

A) Award Contracts for Landscaping Maintenance
B) Consent Agenda:

1. Approval of December 2, 2013 Minutes
2. Award of Contract with McClees Consulting, Inc.
3. Award Contracts for Landscaping Maintenance  MOVED TO ITEM A
4. Award Contract for Whalehead Subdivision Drainage Improvements-Phase IV and

Authorization for County Manager to Execute Contract
5. Proclamation Declaring Currituck County as a Purple Heart County
6. Request for Waiver of Fees by Moyock High School Reunion Committee
7. CDBG Monthly Status Report
8. Petition to NC Department of Transportation for Addition of Knotts Landing Lane to State

System
9. Petition to NC Department of Transportation for Addition of Solo Lane to State System
10. Budget Amendment

C) Commissioner’s Report
D) County Manager’s Report

Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss personnel matters. 

Adjourn 

D) Public Comment
Vice-Chairman Martin opened the Public Comment period. 

Mary Etheridge, Shawboro, stated that with the new year, she has reflected on the past.  She 
has made a resolution to make citizens aware of what her family has gone through.  Her 
reflections included quotes by the County Attorney, Ben Woody, and Chairman O’Neal, and she 
asked why the County was appealing the court’s decision.  Her last quote, by Confucius, was for 
the Commissioners’ reflection, “What you do not want done to yourself, do not to others.”   

Joyce Waldie, Brayview Landing, Moyock, stated that her property insurance had increased 
because the nearest fire hydrant was too far away. Commissioners asked that the fire hydrant 
situation be investigated. 

Following remarks regarding a request by the homeowners insurance industry for another rate 
increase, the County Manager was directed to publish the address and other information so 
citizens could offer comments to their State representatives.   

Larry Mushill, Brayview Landing, Moyock, also requested a fire hydrant for the subdivision.  

16

CANCELLED



3 January 6, 2014 

Commissioner McCord asked about the cost of hydrants.  Mr. Scanlon related staff was working 
on a design and would bring a report to the next meeting.   

There being no further comments, Vice-Chairman Martin closed the Public Comment period. 

Administrative Reports 

A) Presentation by Wheeler Family

The John Wheeler, Sr., Family presented Andy the Ambulance to the Currituck County 
Emergency Management Services in memory of Mr. Wheeler.  The gift was for educating 
children.   

Captain Stephen Harris accepted the gift on behalf of EMS with thanks.  

Commissioner Aydlett agreed it was a wonderful gift for the children. 

Public Hearings 

A) Public Hearing and Action: PB 88-66 The Villages at Ocean Hill: Request to
amend a sketch plan and use permit to remove lot 273 from the Planned Unit
Development, Tax Map 114, Parcel 3R, Poplar Branch Township.

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, reviewed the request as well as 
staff, Technical Review Committee and Planning Board recommendations.  As Public 
Hearings A and B were concerning the same property, he combined his presentation.   

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

DATE: January 6, 2014 
PB 88-66 The Villages at Ocean Hill 

ITEM:  PB 88-66 The Villages at Ocean Hill – Amended Sketch Plan and Special Use 
Permit to remove Lot 273. 

TAX ID:  0114-000-003R-0000 (Lot 273) 

OWNER: Twiddy Family Partnership, LLC 
PO Box 369  
Corolla, NC 27927 

APPLICANT: Doug Twiddy, Twiddy Family Partnership, LLC 

17

CANCELLED



4 January 6, 2014 

I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 
a. Remove parcel 0114-000-003R-0000 (Lot 273) from The Villages at Ocean Hill PUD and

amend sketch plan. 
b. There is no net change in the required open space area in the Villages at Ocean Hill PUD;

however, there is a reduction in the required open space.  The PUD is required to have a 
minimum of 35% open space.  The proposed removal of Lot 273 will reduce the PUD’s 
required open space by .32 acres and subsequently reduce the PUD’s required open 
space area by .112 acres. 

II. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD:
Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings:
 A use permit shall be approved on a finding the applicant demonstrates the proposed use will: 

1. Not endanger the public health or safety
Suggested Findings:

a. The removal of Lot 273 will not endanger the public health or safety.

2. Not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in harmony with the area in
which it is located
Suggested Findings:

a. The removal of Lot 273 will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will
be in harmony with the area in which it is located.

3. Be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan.
Suggested Findings:

a. The removal of Lot 273 will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan and other plans.

4. Not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, but not limited to,
schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  Applicable state standards
and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public facilities are adequate.
Suggested Findings:

a. The removal of Lot 273 will not have an impact on the county’s ability to provide
adequate public facilities.

III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, technical review committee recommends APPROVAL.

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning Board recommended approval of the amended sketch plan with staff recommendations.

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (12-10-13) 
Mr. Dail asked if the Board had any questions. Mr. Dail said this parcel is not connected to the 
PUD. 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 88-66 with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis.  Ms. Wilson seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 

Vice-Chairman Martin opened the Public Hearing. 

There being no comments, Vice-Chairman Martin closed the Public Hearing. 

18

CANCELLED



5 January 6, 2014 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve PB 88-66 with the staff findings and 
recommendations included in the case analysis.  Commissioner Gilbert  seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried unanimously.   

B) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-29 TFP, LLC:  Request for a conditional
rezoning from SFO (Single Family Outer Banks) and PUD Overlay to CD-GB
(Conditional District – General Business), Tax Map 114, Parcels 3R and 20,
Poplar Branch Township.

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, reviewed the request as well as 
staff, Technical Review Committee and Planning Board recommendations. 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE 
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: January 6, 2014 

PB 13-29 TFP, LLC 

ITEM:  PB 13-29 TFP, LLC a conditional rezoning from SFO (Single Family Outer Banks) 
and PUD Overlay to CD-GB (General Business).  

LOCATION: Corolla Village 

TAX ID: 0114-000-0020-0000 

OWNER: Currituck East LLC 
PO Box 369 
Corolla, NC 27927 

TAX ID:  0114-000-003R-0000 

OWNER: Twiddy Family Partnership, LLC 
PO Box 369  
Corolla, NC 27927 

APPLICANT: Doug Twiddy, Twiddy Family Partnership, LLC 

LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
Land Use Base Zoning Overlay 

NORTH: Vacant SFO PUD 
SOUTH Religious institution/Dwelling SFO NA 
EAST: Commercial Operations Building/ 

Water Treatment & Drain field Area 
CD-GB/SFO PUD (partial) 

WEST: Vacant SFO NA 

NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 
a. The applicant is requesting a rezoning of Parcel# 0114-000-0020-0000 and Parcel#

0114-000-003R-0000 to Conditional District – General Business. 
b. The applicant intends to recombine the parcels and construct a 10 bedroom Inn (Hotel Use)

on the property. 

19

CANCELLED



6 January 6, 2014 

LAND USE PLAN CLASSIFICATION: 

The Land Use Plan (LUP) identifies Parcel# 0114-000-0020-0000 as Full Service and Parcel# 0114-000-
003R-0000 as Conservation. The Conservation class is applied to areas that should not be developed at 
all (preserved), or if developed, done so in a very limited manner characterized by careful planning and 
cautious attention to the conservation of environmental features.  Actions to mitigate the conflict with the 
Land Use Plan may include but are not limited to: 

o Low Impact Development techniques such as cisterns that capture the rainwater from the roof,
constructed wetlands, use of porous pavement, and rain gardens should be provided in 
environmentally sensitive areas or areas designated Conservation by the 2006 Land Use 
Plan.   

o The landscape plantings shall consist of native, salt tolerant vegetation.
o The preservation of existing, significant vegetation.
o Inland, non-tidal and coastal wetlands remain undisturbed, excluding elevated walkways.
o The use of vegetative buffers between limits of disturbance and wetland areas.

The Corolla Village Small Area Plan (CVSAP) identifies both Parcel# 0114-000-0020-0000 and Parcel# 
0114-000-003R-0000 as Mixed Use.  The proposed project appears to be consistent with this plan.  

CURRENT ZONING: SFO & PUD Overlay (partial) 

PROPOSED ZONING: CD-GB (Conditional District – General Business) 

CURRENT USE: Vacant 

SIZE OF SITE: 1.35 acres 

ZONING HISTORY:    1989 Official Zoning Map indicates the properties were zoned RO1 

UTILITIES:  The proposed development will connect to the county water system and 
will be served by central sewer.     

WETLANDS: There are “404” wetlands on the subject properties. 

PROPOSED ZONING CONDITIONS: 
The applicant/owner proposes the following conditions: 

1. Mature trees will be identified and preserved where practical and commercially reasonable.
2. Provide pedestrian friendly circulation from buildings to street right-of-way.
3. Building construction to be reflective of the Corolla Village historic architecture.

COMMUNITY MEETING: 
The community meeting was held on September 10, 2013 at the Corolla Library. A full summary 
prepared by the applicant is available online. 

TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 

The conditional rezoning request appears to be consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the 
Land Use Plan and other applicable county-adopted plans, and the purposes of the UDO.  The 
proposed development shall be evaluated during the site plan and building permit review process to 
ensure compliance with adopted conditions and the UDO.    

The technical review committee recommends approval of the 1.35 acre rezoning from Single Family 
Residential Outer Banks (SFO) and PUD Overlay to Conditional District – General Business (CD-GB) 
subject to the revised conditions that must be agreed in writing by the applicant: 

20

CANCELLED



7 January 6, 2014 

Proposed Zoning Conditions (Revised): 
Strikethrough text shall be deleted (must be agreed in writing by the applicant) 
Bold and underline text is proposed (must be agreed in writing by the applicant) 

1. Mature trees will be identified and preserved where practical and commercially reasonable.
1. Provide pedestrian friendly circulation from buildings to street right-of-way.
2. Building construction to be reflective of the Corolla Village historic architecture.
3. The property shall be developed in accordance with the Conceptual Development Plans

dated November 25, 2013.

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board recommended approval of the conditional rezoning request with staff 
recommendations. 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (12-10-13) 
Mr. Dail said the applicant/owner agree with all the conditions in the case analysis.  The 
conceptual plan is a low density project.  Mr. Dail asked if the board had any questions.   

Ms. Wilson asked if the Conceptual Development Plan dated October 15, 2013 is the same as 
the one dated November 25, 2013.  

Mr. Dail stated the November 25, 2013 is a revision of the one dated October 15, 2013. 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Cartwright moved to approve PB 13-29 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan 
and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly growth and 
development.  Mr. Bell seconded the request and the motion passed unanimously. 

Vice-Chairman Martin opened the Public Hearing. 

Derek Dail, Quible, was present to answer any questions.  There were none. 

There being no further comments, Vice-Chairman Martin closed the Public Hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve PB 13-29 as presented by staff due to its consistency 
with the 2006 Land Use Plan and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest.  
Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

C) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-27 Troy Moser:  Request for a use permit
to operate a pawn shop in Moyock at 417A Caratoke Highway, Moyock
Shopping Plaza, Tax Map 9A, Parcel 55, Moyock Township.

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, reviewed the request as well as 
staff, Technical Review Committee and Planning Board recommendations. 

21

CANCELLED



8 January 6, 2014 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE 
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: January 6, 2014 
PB 13-27 Troy Moser 

ITEM:   PB 13-27 Troy Moser request for a Use Permit to operate a pawn shop. 

LOCATION: Moyock:  417A Caratoke Highway (Moyock Shopping Plaza) 

TAX ID: 009A-000-0055-0000 

ZONING DISTRICT: General Business (GB) 

PRESENT USE: Retail Shopping Center 

OWNER: E.F. Humphries, Jr. 
PO Box 39 
Moyock NC  27958 

APPLICANT: Troy Moser 
417A Caratoke Highway 
Moyock NC  27958 

LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
Land Use Zoning 

NORTH: Low Density Residential/Retail GB 
SOUTH Low Density Residential GB 
EAST: Low Density Residential GB 
WEST: Retail/Service GB 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Moyock subarea. 

SIZE OF SITE: 3.46 acres 

COMMUNITY MEETING: A community meeting was held on September 17, 2013 at the 
proposed pawn shop location.  The only attendees were County staff 
and those associated with the business owner.    

I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 
1. The applicant is requesting to operate a pawn shop in the existing Moyock Shopping

Plaza. 
2. This would be the first pawn shop in Currituck County under the new UDO.

II. USE PERMIT REVIEW STANDARDS:
Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings:

Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise

22

CANCELLED



9 January 6, 2014 

be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of 
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties. 

In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and staff findings are 
outlined as follows: 

1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety.
Staff Findings:
a. The use should not endanger the public health or safety:

1. General Statutes – Chapter 66, Article 45 strictly regulate pawnshops.
2. The pawnshop must keep detailed records that are made available to the sheriff’s

office on a daily basis.
3. To be eligible for a pawnbroker’s license, an applicant must be of good moral

character and not have been convicted of a felony within the last 10 years.

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with
the area in which it is located.
Staff Findings:
a. Since the use will be in an existing shopping plaza, it should not injure the value of

nearby lands and should be in harmony with the area in which it is located.

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan.
Staff Findings:
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Moyock subarea.
With respect to nonresidential uses, it is essential that the existing community character be
preserved.  Nonresidential uses may include clusters of businesses serving the immediate
area and, where appropriate, a more extensive market territory. The proposed use is in
keeping with the policies of the plan, which include:

Policy CD2:  Commercial and office development of greater than a neighborhood 
scale shall be encouraged to cluster in commercial or mixed-use centers to curtail the 
proliferation of strip development and minimize traffic generation. 
Policy ED 1:  New and expanding industries and businesses should be especially 
encouraged that:  1) diversify the local economy, 2) train and utilize a more highly 
skilled labor force, and 3) are compatible with the environmental quality and natural 
amenity based economy of Currituck County. 
Policy ED 4:  In addition to the recruitment and expansion of major new industries, the 
considerable value of small business start-ups, expansions, and spin-offs shall also be 
recognized. 

4. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including,
but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public
facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be in place
within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of major
subdivisions).
Staff Findings:
a. The proposed use should not produce additional burdens on schools, fire and rescue,

or other public facilities.

III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends
approval of the use permit subject to the following:

23

CANCELLED



10 January 6, 2014 

1. Outdoor storage and display are not allowed under this permit.

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning Board recommended approval of the use permit with staff recommendations.

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (12-10-13) 

Mr. Humphries asked if the board had any questions. 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Ms. Newbern moved to approve PB 13-27 with the findings of fact and staff recommendations 
included in the case analysis.  Mr. Cartwright seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously. 

Vice-Chairman Martin opened the Public Hearing. 

There were no comments from the public. 

Troy Moser, applicant, related that there would be a point of sale ID system, and that records 
keeping would be a top priority.    

There being no further comments, Vice-Chairman Martin closed the Public Hearing. 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve PB 13-27 with the staff findings and 
recommendations included in the case analysis.  Commissioner Petrey seconded the motion.  
Motion carried unanimously.     

D) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-17 Moyock Crossing:  Request for a
preliminary plat/use permit for 90 residential lots in a conservation
subdivision located in Moyock on the north side of Shingle Landing Road
approximately 260 feet east of Fox Lane, Tax Map 9, Parcel 41, Moyock
Township.

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, reviewed the request as well as 
staff, Technical Review Committee and Planning Board recommendations. 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: January 6, 2014 

PB 13-17  Moyock Crossing 

ITEM:  PB 13-17  Moyock Crossing preliminary plat/use permit for 90 residential lots in 
a conservation subdivision.  

LOCATION: Moyock:  located on the north side of Shingle Landing Road, approximately 260 
feet east of Fox Lane, and along Shingle Landing Creek, Moyock Township 

24

CANCELLED



11 January 6, 2014 

TAX ID: 0009-000-0041-0000 

ZONING DISTRICT: Single Family Mainland (SFM)   

PRESENT USE: Woodland/Farmland 

OWNER: Gee’s Group of North Carolina, Inc. 
770 Lynnhaven Parkway, #160 
Virginia Beach, VA  23452 

APPLICANT: Hyman & Robey, PC 
150 US HWY 158 
PO Box 339 
Camden, NC  27921 

LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
Land Use Zoning 

NORTH: Low density residential  SFM/GB 
SOUTH Low density residential/auto service/storage GB 
EAST: Shingle Landing Creek/Low density residential SFM 
WEST: Low density residential AG/CD-SFM 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service and Rural within 

the Moyock subarea. 

SIZE OF SITE: 58.16 acres 
47.68 acres - Full Service 
10.48 acres - Rural 

NUMBER OF UNITS: 90 lots 

PROJECT DENSITY: 1.55 units – overall density 

OPEN SPACE: 23.26 Acres Required 
23.36 Acres Provided 

20.84 acres primary conservation   
2.52 acres secondary conservation 

UTILITIES: The proposed lots will be served by county water.  The developer also 
proposes to install the necessary infrastructure to connect to the county 
wastewater system.     

RECREATION AND 
PARK AREA: The required park area dedication is 2.30 acres.  The TRC requests a 

payment in lieu of the dedication.  The payment, based on the current tax 
value, is $12,698.25 and must be paid prior to final plat approval. 

I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 
• The applicant is requesting preliminary plat/use permit approval of a 90 lot residential

conservation subdivision. 
• On November 4, 2013, the Board of Commissioners denied a text amendment to allow street

intersections to be spaced 200 feet apart.  The applicant redesigned the subdivision to meet 
the current UDO requirements which resulted in an increase of 6 lots and lots located on the 
western side of Crossing Avenue. 

• All lots are proposed to be served by county water and wastewater.

25

CANCELLED



12 January 6, 2014 

• The proposed development will provide street interconnection with Shingle Landing subdivision.
• Open space improvements will include an elevated boardwalk to Shingle Landing Creek and

recreational vehicle parking.

II. USE PERMIT REVIEW STANDARDS:
Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings:

Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the administration of
the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise be considered undesirable
in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of approval to minimize any negative effects
they might have on surrounding properties.

In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and staff findings of fact are
outlined as follows:

1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety.
Staff Findings:
a. The subdivision should have little to no negative impact on public health or safety.

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with the
area in which it is located.
Staff Findings:
a. As proposed, the minimum lot size is 9,080 square feet (0.21 acre) with an average size of

13,030 square feet.
b. Proposed lots adjacent to Fox Run and Shingle Landing Farms subdivisions shall have a

minimum 125 feet of road frontage.
c. A 10 foot evergreen buffer will be provided between the proposed subdivision and Fox Run

and Shingle Landing Farms subdivisions.

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan.
Staff Findings:
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service and Rural within the Moyock subarea.
Insert LUP classification narrative.  The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan,
some of which are:

POLICY HN1: Currituck County shall encourage development to occur at densities appropriate 
for the location. LOCATION AND DENSITY FACTORS shall include whether the development 
is within an environmentally suitable area, the type and capacity of sewage treatment 
available to the site, the adequacy of transportation facilities providing access to the site, and 
the proximity of the site to existing and planned urban services. For example, projects falling 
within the Full Services areas of the Future Land Use Map would be permitted a higher density 
because of the availability of infrastructure as well as similarity to the existing development 
pattern. Such projects could be developed at a density of two (2) or more dwelling units per 
acre. Projects within areas designated as Limited Service would be permitted a density of one 
(1) to one and one half (1.5) units per acre depending upon the surrounding development 
pattern and availability of resources. Projects within areas designated as Rural or 
Conservation by the Future Land Use Plan would be permitted a much lower density of 1 
dwelling unit per 3 acres because of the lack of infrastructure in the area, the existing low 
density development pattern, and presence of environmentally sensitive natural areas. 

POLICY HN3: Currituck County shall especially encourage two forms of residential 
development, each with the objective of avoiding traditional suburban sprawl: 

1. OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENTS that cluster homes on less land, preserving permanently
dedicated open space and often employ on-site or community sewage treatment. 
These types of developments are likely to occur primarily in the Conservation, Rural, 

26

CANCELLED



13 January 6, 2014 

and to a certain extent the Limited Service areas identified on the Future Land Use 
Map. 

2. COMPACT, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS or DEVELOPMENTS NEAR A MIXTURE OF USES
that promote a return to balanced, self-supporting community centers generally served 
by centralized water and sewer. The types of development are contemplated for the 
Full Service Areas identified on the Future Land Use Map. 

POLICY TR7: A system of LOCAL CONNECTOR ROADS shall be identified and implemented 
to allow local traffic to move in a north-south direction without having to use and further 
burden US 158. 

4. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including, but not
limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  Applicable state
standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public facilities are adequate.
Staff Findings:
a. Based on the student generation rates, this subdivision will generate the following students:

i. 22 elementary students
ii. 7 middle school students
iii. 12 high school students

b. The proposed development will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public
facilities

III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends
conditional approval subject to the following plan corrections (based on the resubmitted plan):

1. Please contact James Mims regarding the fire hydrant placement.  The proposed spacing appears
to be greater than 1000 feet.  (Staff commentary:  The fire marshal’s office is reviewing the revised
plan).

2. The proposed drainage plan does not include lot line swales which are required by the
UDO.  However, there may be alternative methods for lot line swales that must be approved by
the county engineer.  A swale does not appear to extend along the western property line of lots
1-9 and lots 49-50 (entirely).  Please clarify how the drainage will be handled on these lots.
(Staff commentary:  Engineering has reviewed the revised plan and has no comments).

3. The Water Department has requested an upsized waterline of 10” to be installed on “Crossing
Avenue” from Moyock Landing Drive to Shingle Landing Road.  A license agreement based on a
certified engineering proposal must be submitted.  (Staff commentary:  Public utilities has reviewed
the revised plan and approved).

4. Please indicate the riparian buffer zones on the plan.  (Staff commentary:  The revised plan
illustrates the riparian buffer).

5. Since lots are now located along Crossing Avenue, sidewalks must be provided on both sides of
the proposed street.  (Staff commentary:  See Planning Board recommendation).

6. Please clarify the installation of improvements for Crossing Avenue and the proposed phasing
plan.  (Staff commentary:  Phasing plan was corrected on revised plan).

7. All corner lots (lots 10, 42, 70, 71, and 96) shall include a five foot non-ingress/egress easement
along the lot line bordering the more heavily travelled street.

8. With the increase in the number of lots, one additional (9 total) recreational equipment storage
space shall be provided.  (Staff commentary:  The revised plan reduced the total number of lots to
90). 

9. The proposed fenced storage area shall be landscaped and indicated on the construction plans.
10. Utility easements shall be indicated on the preliminary plan.
11. Please clarify the function of the narrow strip of open space located behind many of the

lots.    The plan appears to create an area that may become a maintenance concern and not a
functional area of open space.

12. The revised plan now indicates proposed lots located along Fox Run and Shingle Landing Farm
property lines.    As many as three lots now abut one existing residential lot to the west.  Although

27

CANCELLED



14 January 6, 2014 

the proposed development is consistent with the density allowed under the UDO, the development 
of lots 1-9 and 49-50 appear to not be consistent with one of the use permit criteria.  Specifically, 
the criteria states, “The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is located”.  By developing as many as three lots that abut one 
residential lot does not appear to be in harmony with the subdivisions in the area.  Efforts must be 
made to mitigate the impacts of the lots along the existing subdivisions.  (Staff commentary:  The  
revised plan illustrates lots adjacent to Fox Run and Shingle Landing Farm subdivision have a minimum 
lot width of 125’). 

The TRC recommends conditional approval subject to the following permit conditions: 

1. Plan corrections must be resubmitted and approved.

2. Stormwater ponds for the development may not be located on individual lots unless an easement is
provided for stormwater maintenance.

3. The development density shall not exceed 2 units per acre.

4. With the exception of the two wetland crossings (street/sidewalk and the elevated water access
to Shingle Landing Creek) all wetlands on the property shall remain undisturbed.

5. To minimize the dissimilarity of the lot sizes in Moyock Crossing the subdivision plan shall
incorporate one or a combination of the following options:

a. An adequate open space buffer must be provided between the proposed lots in Moyock
Crossing and the existing residential lots in Fox Run and Shingle Landing Farms,

b. Increased lot sizes consistent with the lots in Fox Run and Shingle Landing Farms, or

c. Removal of lots along the western side of Crossing Avenue.

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Board recommended approval of the preliminary plat/use permit with staff
recommendations and the following conditions:

• Crosswalks are implemented at the intersections in order to prevent sidewalks in the wetlands.
• Continue sidewalks on both sides of the road on the north end of the subdivision.
• Reduce the number of lots on Fox Run from nine to five at 125 ft. lot width.
• Ten foot wide evergreen buffer at the back of the five lots and lots 49 and 50 that adjoin Fox Run

and Shingle Landing Farms.
• An eight foot wide sidewalk installed along Crossing Avenue on one side of the street from

intersection to intersection of internal streets.

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (12-10-13) 
Mr. Bell asked if the applicant was aware sidewalks were required on both sides of the street. 

Ms. Voliva stated they were aware based on recommendations from previously plans. 

Ms. Bell stated she is concerned with the number of proposed homes on this little piece of land when 
wetlands are involved; and neighbors this close with their lot size so different. The Moyock Small Area Plan 
is in its final stages and a development of this size is not desirable.  Mr. Clark agreed.  

Ms. Voliva said this is a conservation subdivision and the minimal lot size no longer applies as it is based 
upon density. 

Mr. Cartwright said people may not like certain things, but the applicant is going by the ordinance and 
rules and you should vote for the rules and not personal feelings.  

28

CANCELLED



15 January 6, 2014 

Mr. Cooper stated the way it is drawn out it meets the density and outlay meet the current rules with the 
exception of the sidewalks. 

Ms. Voliva stated it is not so much the use, but the compatibility between the two subdivisions with the lot 
sizes. 

Mr. Mizelle said Phase 1 does provide connection to Shingle Landing. Mr. Mizelle provided a handout 
stating the proposed lots on Fox Run will go from nine lots to five lots, which will make the total of 92 lots. 
This will make the lots larger and more compatible to the adjoining lots. The lots are currently 11,000 sq. 
ft. and will be going to 18,000 sq. ft.  Mr. Mizelle stated they will do crosswalks at each intersection to 
minimize the impact on the wetlands area.    

The Planning Board discussed stormwater ponds and who will maintain them.  

Mr. Clark asked if the applicant/owner would consider adding a buffer to the proposed five lots since 
they are increasing the lot size. 

Mr. Mizelle said they would do a buffer, but prefer not to have an open space buffer.  The homeowner 
will maintain the buffer. 

Mr. Cooper stated that the evergreen buffer will be on the plat, as well as in the covenants so a potential 
buyer will know.   

Mr. Crocker said he is concerned with stormwater runoff, traffic on a private road in Moyock Landing, and 
the impact of 92 driveways.  Mr. Crocker stated he has been to a few of the Moyock Small Area Plan 
meetings and this request is far from what the residents of Moyock want to see.  

Ms. White said she is a member of the Moyock Small Area Plan and this request is not what they are 
looking to see.    

Mr. Clark said the board is really concerned with the resident concerns. Mr. Clark said the county has a 
Land Use Plan and Unified Development Ordinance, which an applicant/owner has to meet these criteria. 
If they meet them, then they have no other choice but to grant them permission to do what they want to do. 
The applicant/owner came back with a plan to decrease their lot sizes in order to meet the compatibility 
standard.     

Ms. White said they would like to see fewer lots on the property. 

Mr. Wright talked about this request is not in harmony with the surrounding area. 

Mr. Miller said he understands you need to abide by rules. When the Gee’s Group brought this property 
the original plan was for 39 lots with nice buffering.  This request breaks his heart. 

Ms. Bell stated it is hard to keep your emotions out of it when it is a place you live. Ms. Bell stated the 
developer will come and build these homes and leave.  The people in this area will have to deal with 
stormwater, crowds and traffic. Ms. Bell stated it would be nice if somebody could think about the impact 
of the human beings that are going to live there for the rest of their lives and leave them with the 
consequences.   

Mr. Clark stated when he became a board member five years ago his intent was to stop developments 
like this; but the county has a Unified Development Ordinance and adopted plans which the board is 
bound by.   

Mr. Cooper said the board have rules which a lot of time and effort went into to develop them; and the 
board has to take these rules into consideration otherwise it may give the appearance to the public that 
they board is making up rules as they go along.  

29

CANCELLED



16 January 6, 2014 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Cooper moved to approve PB 13-17 with the following conditions: 

• Crosswalks be implemented at the intersections in order to prevent sidewalks in the wetlands;
• Continue sidewalks on both sides of the road on the north end of the subdivision;
• Reduce the number of lots on Fox Run from nine to five at 125 ft. lot width; and,
• Ten foot wide evergreen buffer at the back of the five lots and lots 49 and 50 that adjoin Fox Run

and Shingle Landing Farms.
• An eight foot wide sidewalk installed along Crossing Avenue on one side of the street from

intersection to intersection of internal streets.
Mr. Cartwright seconded the motion.  Ayes:  Mr. Bell, Ms. Newbern, Mr. Cooper, Mr. Clark, Ms. Wilson, 
and Mr. Cartwright.  Nays:  Ms. Bell and Mr. Wright. 

Mr. Woody addressed Commissioners’ questions regarding lot sizes, compliance with the 
Small Area Plan study and tap fees.   

Jason Mizelle, Hyman and Robey, representing the applicant, reviewed compliance with the 
UDO.  Proposed homes would be 2500-3000 sq.ft. at a cost of $275,000-$325,000.   He 
stated drainage would not be an issue due to stormwater ponds. 

Mr. Woody noted Shingle Landing Creek would not be negatively impacted.  The subdivision 
would have to comply with the stormwater manual.   

Commissioners were concerned about compatibility with the surrounding subdivisions. 

Mr. Mizelle described the transition between proposed subdivision and Shingle Landing. 

Vice-Chairman Martin opened the Public Hearing. 

Jo Drago, Moyock, was concerned with density, drainage and providing services. 

Bob Crocker, Moyock, was concerned with lot coverage, drainage, and run-off. 

Commissioner Aydlett asked about original plans. 

Eddie Hyman, Hyman and Robey, responded the original plan was for 39 lots plus open space 
designed under the old UDO.  Due to availability of sewer, the lot number increased. 

Mary Waller, Moyock, was in favor of the project; however, she was concerned with run-off and 
drainage.   She expressed the need for diversity and more affordability. 

Don Williams, Moyock, developer of Shingle Landing, opposed interconnection with Shingle 
Landing Drive.  He asked where the sewer system would be coming in for the new 
development.  The response was Moyock Landing Drive.   

Eldon Miller, III, and Dorothee White, Moyock, members of the Small Area Plan Committee, 
spoke together.  Ms. White stated that low density was preferred as well as a quality subdivision 
with adequate buffering.  She remarked on the various plans that had been presented and her 

30

CANCELLED



17 January 6, 2014 

opinion that the sewer system was for commercial businesses.  Mr. Miller was also concerned 
with density.   He liked the original plan with 30+ lots and also felt the sewer should be for 
commercial use.  He had commercial properties he would be interested in hooking up, but the 
tap fees were too high.  He was opposed to residences hooking up to central sewer system.  He 
also felt the subdivision was not in harmony with the area, and asked what it will create in the 
future. 

Bob Gregory, Moyock, was concerned that the plan kept changing.  He was not against 
development, but not in favor of the density. 

Susan Davis, Moyock, requested denial of the sewer connection.  Then fewer homes would be 
possible.  She was opposed to 90 homes.  

Bob Crocker, Moyock, asked if permission was needed to cut through the road. 

Ike McRee, County Attorney, responded that an easement was needed. 

Eddie Hyman, related the plans were evolving due to community meetings and Planning Board 
comments.  He described the buffers.  Sewer taps were offered and paid.  He stated the project 
meets the criteria and requirements.  When asked about changing the size of the homes, if not 
successful, he was confident the homes would sell.  When asked about a homeowners 
association, he responded it was mandated under the UDO.  In response to a question about 
traffic concerns, he stated DOT was in the process and felt there was adequate visibility.  
Interconnectivity will enhance safety.   

There was also concern with the public boat ramp traffic. 

Commissioners observed that the sewer allows a difference in this subdivision as opposed to 
one where sewer was not available.   

Mr. Hyman responded that the County was looking for customers for the sewer system.  He 
noted the design will come with approval.  It is designed under the UDO, and stormwater rules 
will help.   

Commissioners felt more study was needed to determine compatibility. 

Vice-Chairman Martin stated they were at an impasse and suggested continuing the public 
hearing and action until the first meeting in February. 

Commissioner Gilbert moved to continue PB 13-17 to allow staff to perform an analysis of 
surrounding development patterns since the proposed density of the project may not be in 
harmony with the area in which it is located. Compatibility, drainage and easements were to be 
addressed.  Commissioner McCord seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  

Vice-Chairman Martin called a five-minute recess. 

After reconvening, meeting continued with Item E. 

E) Public Hearing and Action: PB 13-23 Charles Perry:  Request for a use permit
to operate automobile sales in Grandy at 6331, 6333, and 6335 Caratoke
Highway, Tax Map 94, Parcel 135B, Poplar Branch Township.

31

CANCELLED



18 January 6, 2014 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning and Community Development Director, reviewed the request as well as 
staff, Technical Review Committee and Planning Board recommendations. 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE 
Board of Commissioners 
DATE: January 6, 2014 
PB 13-23  Charles Perry 

ITEM:  PB 13-23  Charles Perry requests a use permit to operate automobile 
sales.  

LOCATION: Grandy:  6331, 6333, 6335 Caratoke Highway 

TAX ID: 0094-0000-135B-0000 

ZONING DISTRICT: General Business (GB)   

PRESENT USE: Residential/Automobile Sales/Office 

OWNER: Charles E. Perry 
Lola M. Perry 
6335 Caratoke Highway 
Grandy, NC  27939 

APPLICANT: Charles E. Perry 

LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
Land Use Zoning 

NORTH: Fire Department GB/AG 
SOUTH Undeveloped GB/AG 
EAST: Undeveloped GB/AG 
WEST: Shopping Center GB 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION: The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service within the 

Grandy subarea. 

SIZE OF SITE: 1.38 acres 

COMMUNITY MEETING: A community meeting was held on September 9, 2013 at 6335 
Caratoke Highway.     

I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 
• The applicant is requesting a use permit for the operation of automobile sales.
• Mr. Perry has operated the automobile sales from this property for five years and did

not realize a use permit was required.

32

CANCELLED



19 January 6, 2014 

• At the community meeting general comments regarding the site plan were discussed.
Concerns included making sure the vehicles are located in an area that provides
adequate line of site.

II. USE PERMIT REVIEW STANDARDS:
Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings:

Use permits (UP) are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the
administration of the UDO. Through the UP procedure, property uses which would otherwise
be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions of
approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on surrounding properties.

In order to approve a UP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria and staff findings of
fact are outlined as follows:

1. The use will not endanger the public health or safety.
Staff Findings:
a. The automobile display areas shall be located a minimum of 10 feet from Caratoke

Highway right of way and should not endanger the public health or safety.

2. The use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting lands and will be in harmony with
the area in which it is located.
Staff Findings:
a. The surrounding land uses include a shopping center, fire station, retail sales, and

offices.
b. The existing approved use of the property is office and residential.

3. The use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or other officially adopted plan.
Staff Findings:
The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service within the Grandy subarea.  The
Full Service area recommends design criteria be established to ensure the commercial
development protects and preserves the existing community in scale, architectural style,
materials, landscaping, and site design.    The policy emphasis of the Grandy subarea is
to evolve as a community center.  The proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the
plan, such as:

POLICY CA3:  LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS at existing and new commercial 
developments, particularly as related to breaking up and softening the appearance 
of expansive parking areas, and absorbing storm water runoff, shall be required.   

4. The use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public facilities, including,
but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when public
facilities are adequate. Such facilities must be in place or programmed to be in place
within two years after the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of major
subdivisions).
Staff Findings:
a. The proposed use should have no additional impact on the county’s ability to provide

adequate public facilities, including but not limited to, schools, fire and rescue, law
enforcement, and other county facilities.

33

CANCELLED



20 January 6, 2014 

III. TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:
Pursuant to the Unified Development Ordinance, the Technical Review Committee recommends
approval subject to the following:

1. The display area shall include a Type A bufferyard located between the display area
and the street.  The shrubs shall be located along the display area.

IV. PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning Board recommended approval of PB 13-23 as presented for a use permit.
Motion passed unanimously.

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (11-12-13) 

Mr. Bell asked if the required shrubs would present line of sight issues. 

Ms. Voliva said the owner is proposing Indian Hawthorn shrubs that do not grow very tall and 
with proper maintenance, should not be a problem. 

Mr. Perry said he would have gotten a use permit five years ago had he known it was a 
requirement. 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Craddock moved to approve PB 13-23 as presented.  Ms. Bell seconded the motion and the 
motion passed unanimously. 

Vice-Chairman Martin opened the Public Hearing. 

Charles Perry, applicant, apologized for not being at the last meeting. 

Commissioner Petrey remarked that Mr. Perry was a community-minded person, helping out 
when needed. 

There being no further comments, Vice-Chairman Martin closed the Public Hearing. 

Commissioner Petrey moved to approve PB 13-23 with the staff findings and 
recommendations included in the case analysis.   

New Business 

A) Award Contracts for Landscaping Maintenance

Commissioner McCord requested to recuse himself as two of the contracts were for his 
company. Commissioner Petrey moved to excuse Commissioner McCord.  Commissioner 
Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  Commissioner McCord left the 
room. 

34

CANCELLED



21 January 6, 2014 

County Manager Dan Scanlon related there were eight areas/contracts to be awarded.  All 
recommended bids were the low bids.   

Commissioner Petrey moved to award the contracts for landscaping maintenance below. 
Commissioner Gilbert seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.   

Contract #1 (Shawboro through Currituck): 

Rescom Property Services  $ 34,600 per year 

Contract #2 (Maple Road): 

Merrell’s Lawn Services    $  6,500 per year 

Contract #3 (Moyock): 

McCord’s Landscaping         $ 26,400 per year 

Contract #4  (YMCA/NC Cooperative Extension): 

Grandy Landscape Contracting    $ 42,000 per year 

Contract #5 (Airport Road): 

Grandy Landscape Contracting    $ 12,000 per year 

Contract #6 (Barco3-Central Mainland) 

Grandy Landscape Contracting    $ 14,000 per year 

Contract #7 (Grandy to Spot): 

Merrell’s Landscape Contracting   $  7,400 per year 

Contract #8 (Knotts Island): 

McCord’s Landscaping    $ 12,300 per year 

Commissioner McCord returned. 

B) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of December 2, 2013 Minutes
2. Award of Contract with McClees Consulting, Inc.
3. Award Contracts for Landscaping Maintenance (Moved to A)
4. Award Contract for Whalehead Subdivision Drainage Improvements-Phase IV

and Authorization for County Manager to Execute Contract
5. Proclamation Declaring Currituck County as a Purple Heart County

35

CANCELLED



22 January 6, 2014 

6. Request for Waiver of Fees by Moyock High School Reunion Committee
7. CDBG Monthly Status Report
8. Petition to NC Department of Transportation for Addition of Knotts Landing

Lane to State System
9. Petition to NC Department of Transportation for Addition of Solo Lane to

State System
10. Budget Amendment

Commissioner Gilbert moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Petrey 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

PROCLAMATION  
DECLARING CURRITUCK COUNTY AS A PURPLE HEART COUNTY 

WHEREAS, the Purple Heart is the oldest decoration in present use and was initially created as the 
Badge of Military Merit by General George Washington in 1782; and 

WHEREAS, the Purple Heart was the first American service award or decoration made available to the 
common soldier and is specifically awarded to any member of the United States Armed Services wounded 
or killed in combat with a declared enemy of the United States; and 

WHEREAS, the mission of the Military Order of Purple Heart, Chartered by an act of Congress, is to foster 
an environment of goodwill among the combat wounded veteran members and their families, promote 
patriotism, support legislative initiatives and most importantly ---make sure we never forget; and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County residents have been engaged in every war against a declared enemy fought 
by the United States, including the war for the nation’s independence; and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County has become home to countless veterans and their families whose lives have 
been altered forever as a result of combat injuries and loss of life; and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County has a large number of residents who have been awarded the Purple Heart 
Medal for wounds received in combat; and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County recognizes the commitment and increasing sacrifices required of military 
families; and 

WHEREAS, Currituck County pledges its ongoing commitment to and support for the men and 
women who so honorably serve our nation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners hereby 
declares Currituck County as a Purple Heart County in the State of North Carolina. 

36

CANCELLED



23 January 6, 2014 

Debit Credit 

 Decrease Revenue 
or 

Increase Revenue 
or 

Account Number Account Description Increase Expense 
Decrease 
Expense 

10510 532000 Supplies  $            12,500 
10330 424000 Officer Fees  $          12,500 

 $            12,500  $          12,500 

        Explanation: Sheriff (10510) - Increase appropriations to use funds generated through officer 
fees for promotions in the Currituck County Schools. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $12,500. 

C) Commissioner’s Report

Commissioner McCord commended the Wheeler family for all the volunteer hours.  He also 
commented on the Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Association Shop-with-a-Cop and what a 
rewarding experience it was. 

Commissioner Aydlett asked for support in requesting Senator Cook and Representative 
Steinburg to intercede on the County’s behalf to keep tolls off the Knotts Island Ferry.   
Commissioner Aydlett moved to write a letter to the representatives. Commissioner McCord 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried.   

Commissioner Petrey commended Feld Motor Sports and Dennis Anderson for participating in 
Operation Santa by providing 165 children with Christmas gifts. 

Commissioner Gilbert announced the Moyock Small Area Plan meeting on January 13.  She 
noted that Workforce Development Board has funding for retraining employees.  She also 
urged citizens to volunteer all year long.  

Vice-Chairman Martin wished everyone a happy and prosperous 2014.  

D) County Manager’s Report
No report.

Closed Session 
Closed Session pursuant to G.S. 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss personnel matters. 

Commissioner Petrey moved to enter closed session pursuant to G.S 143-318.11(a)(6) to 
discuss a personnel matter.  Commissioner McCord seconded the motion.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

37

CANCELLED



24 January 6, 2014 

Adjourn 

After reconvening from closed session, no action was taken. 

There being no further business, Commissioner Petrey moved to adjourn.  Commissioner 
Aydlett seconded the motion.  The meeting was adjourned. 

38

CANCELLED



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
Amendment to June 3, 2013 Minutes  

New Business 

A) Board Appointments:

2. Appointments to Whalehead Trust Board of Directors

Commissioner Aydlett nominated Cliff Scott for reappointment.  Commissioner Martin 
nominated Don Cheek.  Commissioner Aydlett nominated Travis Morris for reappointment and 
Penny Leary-Smith and Joanna Brumsey for appointment.  

Commissioner Petrey moved to appoint those nominated.  Commissioner Gilbert seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  

Commissioner Petrey moved to appoint the following nominees: 

Cliff Scott and Travis Morris nominated for reappointment by Commissioner Aydlett  
Don Cheek nominated for appointment  by Commissioner Martin  
Penny Leary-Smith and Joanna Brumsey for appointment (nominations with concurrence of 
Board)   

Commissioner Griggs seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

39

CANCELLED



Number 2014040

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

51848 599002 JPK & Moyock Elem Roof Replacement 33,221$   
51848 591001 CCMS HVAC/Griggs Gym 12,396$   
51848 598002 Central Elem Chiller 20,825$   

33,221$   33,221$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

School Facilities (51848) - Transfer funds to close out the CCMS and Griggs Gym HVAC and Central 
Elementary School Chiller projects and move funds to complete the JPK and Moyock Cafeteria Roof 
replacement projects.  This is funded with lottery funds.

Net Budget Effect: School Construction Fund (51) - No change.

40

CANCELLED



Number 2014041

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

20609 590000 Capital Outlay 837,000$   
20609 588000 Contingency 271,000$   
20310 402013 Ad Valorem Taxes 10,000$   
20380 481000 Investment Earnings 6,000$   
20390 499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 550,000$   

837,000$   837,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Whalehead Subdivision Drainage (20609) - Increase appropriations to fund Phase IV of the drainage project, 
boardwalk, SCADA and Dominion Power.

Net Budget Effect: Whalehead Subdivision Stormwater Drainage District (20) - Increased by $566,000.

41

CANCELLED



Number 2014042

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10795 590000 Capital Outlay 3,495$   
10795 532000 Supplies 3,495$   

3,495$   3,495$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Parks & Recreation (10795) - Transfer funds to purchase 6 galvanized aluminum picnic tables for the Knotts 
Island Park.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

42

CANCELLED



43

CANCELLED



Number 2014044

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10775 532000 Supplies 450$   
10380 486000 Donations 450$   

450$   450$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Senior Citizens Center (10775) - To record donation received in memory of Mabel Berry.  Funds will be used 
to purchase sewing supplies for the Senior Center.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $450.

44

CANCELLED



Number 2014045

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510 516200 Vehicle Maintenance 8,993$   
10380 484001 Insurance Recovery 8,993$   

8,993$   8,993$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Sheriff (10510) - Increase appropriations to repair four Sheriff vehicles damaged in accidents since July 1, 
2013. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $8,993.

45

CANCELLED



Number 2014046

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10640 532005 Supplies - Ag 745$   
10390 499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 745$   

745$   745$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Cooperative Extension (10640) - To carry forward Pesticide Grant funding that came in June 2013.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $745.

46

CANCELLED



Number 2014047

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510 557500 Crime Control Act 5,000$   
10330 421500 Crime Control Act 5,000$   

5,000$   5,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Sheriff (10510) - Increase appropriations to increase funding expenditures pursuant to the NC Crime Control 
Act.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $5,000.

47

CANCELLED



Number 2014048

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

66868 513000 Utilities 20,000$   
66868 516200 Vehicle Maintenance 2,000$   
66868 545000 Contracted Services 2,000$   
66360 470000 Utility Charges 20,000$   

22,000$   22,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Southern Outer Banks Water System (66868) - Transfer funds to purchase tires and other maintenance for 
vehicles and increases in utilities during the year at the Southern Outer Banks Water System.

Net Budget Effect: Southern Outer Banks Water System Fund (66) - No change.

48

CANCELLED



Number 2014049

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

12545 590005 Capital Outlay 19,030$   
12545 545000 Contract Services 5,181$   
12390 499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 13,849$   

12546 590006 Capital Outlay 9,250$   
12390 499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 9,250$   

28,280$   28,280$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Lower Currituck Volunteer Fire Department (12545); Corolla Volunteer Fire Department (12546) - 1) Transfer 
funds in Lower Currituck VFD contract for 5% grant matching funds to purchase fifteen SCBA and related 
supplies.  2) Increase appropriations to Lower Currituck VFD for 50% grant matching funds for the 
purchase/replacement of hydraulic rescue tools. 3) Increase appropriations to Corolla VFD to purchase 
wireless headsets.  This funding request was recommended by the Fire and EMS Advisory Board in a letter 
dated October 22, 2013.

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - Increased by $23,099.

49

CANCELLED



Number 2014050

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10480 545200 Records Management 32,000$   
10320 410000 Deed Stamp Excise Tax 32,000$   

32,000$   32,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Register of Deeds (10480) - Increase appropriations to preserve some of the oldest records in the deeds 
office.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $32,000.

50

CANCELLED



Number 2014051

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10550 526100 Airport Promotions 2,000$   
10550 590000 Capital Outlay 1,800$   

10650 516200 Vehicle Maintenance 200$   
10650 526200 Economic Development Promotions 10,000$   
10650 545000 Contracted Services 200$   

10380 482000 Miscellaneous 1,800$   
10390 495015 T F - Occupancy Tax 12,000$   

14,000$   14,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Airport (10550); Economic Development (10650) - Increase appropriations for additional promotion of the 
Airport and Economic Development, to replace airport equipment damaged by lightning and for repairs to the 
Economic Development vehicle.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $13,800.

51

CANCELLED



Number 2014052

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10760 585000 DSS Donations 7,235$   
10390 499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 7,235$   

7,235$   7,235$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Public Assistance (10760) - To carryforward DSS donations remaining from prior fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $7,235.

52

CANCELLED



Number 2014053

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10490 545003 Contracted Services - Court Facilities 2,000$   
10460 545000 Contracted Services 2,000$   

2,000$   2,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Public Works (10460); Court Facilities (10490) - Transfer funds for additional costs of landscaping contracts.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) -No change.

53

CANCELLED



Number 2014054

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50544 590000 Capital Outlay 39,000$   
50390 495012 T F - Fire Services Fund 39,000$   

12541 587050 T T - County Governmental Construction 39,000$   
12390 499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 39,000$   

78,000$   78,000$   

Explanation:

County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $39,000.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

County Governmental Construction - Crawford Fire Station (50544) - Increase appropriations for the 
Crawford Fire Station addition and increase annual repayment amount to $10,656.93.

Net Budget Effect: Fire Services Fund (12) - Increased by $39,000.

54

CANCELLED



Number 2014055

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10420 561000 Professional Services 10,000$   
10380 482000 Miscellaneous 10,000$   

10,000$   10,000$   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Governing Body (10420) - Increase appropriations for lobbyist to work on various County issues.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $10,000.

55

CANCELLED



Number 2014056

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

63838 521000 Rent 2,700$                        
63838 545800 White Goods Disposal 4,500$                        
63838 571501 Recylcing - Electronics 25,000$                      
63838 545001 Contracted Services - Collection 32,200$                    

32,200$                      32,200$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Solid Waste (63838) - Transfer funds for increases in operations in Solid Waste disposal.

Net Budget Effect: Solid Waste (63) - No change.

56

CANCELLED



Number 2014057

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510 539000 Unemployment Insurance 14,129$   
10530 539000 Unemployment Insurance 13,276$   
10640 539000 Unemployment Insurance 556$   
10390 499900 Fund Balance Appropriated 7,039$   
10960 539000 Unemployment Insurance 35,000$   

61818 539000 Unemployment Insurance 6,205$   
61360 471000 Tap & Connection Fees 6,205$   

41,205$   41,205$   

Explanation:

Mainland Water Fund (61) - Increased by $6,205.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 21st day of January, 2014, passed the 
following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Account Number

Various Departments - Transfer and increase appropriations for actual unemployment claims through July 
31, 2013.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $7,039.

57

CANCELLED



58

CANCELLED



59

CANCELLED



Currituck County 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 302 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

252-232-6035 
FAX 252-232-3298 

Eric.Weatherly@CurrituckCountyNC.Gov 

Eric T. Weatherly, P.E. 
County Engineer 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: January 8, 2014 

To:  Board of Commissioners 
Dan Scanlon, County Manager 

From: Eric T. Weatherly 

RE:  Recommendation of Award 
Walnut Island Sanitary District Asphalt Overlay Project 

Background 

Walnut Island received grants from the Rural Center and Clean Water Management Trust Fund 
for the replacement of their sewer system.  As part of the project, funds were allocated to 
resurface the streets in the sewered area. 

Bids for the street resurfacing were solicited by the district on October 26, 2011.  Shortly 
thereafter, the district was dissolved and the county took over ownership and responsibility.  We 
have received all the grant funds to finalize the paving project.  Total project cost is $140,000 
with $73,775 being provided by the previous grants and $66,225 being provided by the 
Walnut Island POA. 

The low bid for the paving project was provided by RPC Contracting of Kitty Hawk in the amount 
of $140,000.  The project will be performed this spring as soon as temperatures are high enough 
for paving operations. 

Recommendation 

Attached for your review is a copy of the contract and bid package from RPC Contracting. 

Staff recommends award of the Walnut Island Sanitary District Asphalt Overlay Project to RPC 
Contracting in the amount of $140,000.  With your approval, we will move forward with award 
of the project and execution of the contract.  

60

CANCELLED



61

CANCELLED



62

CANCELLED



63

CANCELLED



64

CANCELLED



65

CANCELLED



66

CANCELLED



67

CANCELLED



68

CANCELLED



69

CANCELLED



70

CANCELLED



71

CANCELLED



72

CANCELLED



73

CANCELLED



74

CANCELLED



75

CANCELLED



76

CANCELLED



77

CANCELLED



Currituck County 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 302 
Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

252-232-6035 
FAX 252-232-3298 

Eric.Weatherly@CurrituckCountyNC.Gov 

Eric T. Weatherly, P.E. 
County Engineer 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: January 10, 2014 

To:  Board of Commissioners 
Dan Scanlon, County Manager 

From: Eric T. Weatherly 

RE:  Recommendation of Award 
Environmental Assessment for 
Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District Wastewater Expansion 

Background 

The Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District (OSWSD) wastewater treatment facility will have to 
be expanded in accordance to the Settlement Agreement when the unserved areas of Sections G, 
T, U, X, Y are developed. 

The owner, Coastland Corporation, has expressed their desire for the County to be prepared for 
a wastewater system expansion should they begin developing these areas.  Expansion of the 
wastewater system for this growth requires the preparation and approval of an Environmental 
Assessment (EA).  By having the EA completed now, the County will be in position to quickly move 
to design and construction of an expansion if requested by the owner. 

Proposals for the EA were received from three engineering/scientists firms; CH2M Hill of Raleigh, 
Hazen and Sawyer of Raleigh and Environmental Professionals of Kill Devil Hills.  Through a 
selection process, the OSWSD Advisory Board voted January 10, 2014 to select CH2M Hill as 
the firm to conduct the EA. 

Recommendation 

Attached for your review is a copy of the EA contract and scope of services from CH2M Hill.  
Amount of the contract is $159,500.  Funds are available in the OSWSD budget. 

Staff recommends award of the OSWSD EA project to CH2M Hill in the amount of $159,500.  
With your approval, we will move forward with award to CH2M Hill and execution of the 
contract.  

78

CANCELLED



79

CANCELLED



80

CANCELLED



81

CANCELLED



82

CANCELLED



83

CANCELLED



84

CANCELLED



85

CANCELLED



86

CANCELLED



87

CANCELLED



88

CANCELLED



89

CANCELLED



90

CANCELLED



91

CANCELLED



92

CANCELLED



93

CANCELLED



94

CANCELLED



95

CANCELLED



96

CANCELLED



97

CANCELLED



98

CANCELLED



99

CANCELLED



100

CANCELLED



101

CANCELLED



102

CANCELLED



103

CANCELLED



104

CANCELLED



RIGHT OF ENTRY AND LICENSE 
 
 

This Right of Entry and License between the County of Currituck, North Carolina, a body 
corporate and politic existing pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina, (the 
“Licensor”) and Currituck County Fraternal Order of Police (Lodge #89) and the Currituck Family 
YMCA, (the “Licensees”) is made this 21st day of January, 2014. 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Licensor is a body corporate and politic of the State of North Carolina with the duties and 
powers set forth in Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes. 
 

B. Licensee, Currituck County Fraternal Order of Police (Lodge #89), is a North Carolina 
non-profit entity. 

 
C. Licensee, The Currituck Family YMCA, is a branch of the YMCA of South Hampton 

Roads, a Virginia non-profit organization.  
 

D. The Licensees proposes to sponsor, construct and operate a ‘Mud Run’ physical fitness 
challenge on the property described below. The event will be titled the “Run A Muck N 
Currituck Mud Run.”  The event is scheduled to take place on May 17th, 2014.   
 

E. Description of Property. The County of Currituck, a North Carolina municipal 
corporation, warrants that it is the owner of the real property (“The Property") legally 
described as: 

 
Tax Parcel Numbers:  0052000014A0000, 060B00000110000, 060B00000100000, 
060B00000090000, 060B00000020000, 060B00000010000, 060B00000080000, 
005200000160000  

 
The above referenced parcels are located within the Currituck Community Park property 
and the Maple Commerce Park subdivision.  All properties are owned by Currituck 
County.  A map identifying the approved route and obstacle locations is attached to this 
agreement and labeled “Exhibit A.”  

 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the premises and the mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth, 
it is agreed by and between the parties as follows: 
 

1. Right of Entry and License. Licensor grants a Right of Entry and License to Licensees, 
their agents, employees and contractors, to enter the Property for the construction of 
certain temporary obstacles, trail markings, flags including permission to utilize the 

105

CANCELLED



Property to conduct the aforementioned race.  The licensed areas are delineated on the 
drawing attached as “Exhibit A.” 
 

2. Restoration.  Upon completion of the race event, the Licensees or their agents shall 
return the licensed area and all portions of the Property affected by use of the License 
to a condition reasonably comparable to the condition in which it existed prior to the 
Licensees’ use of this license. The intent of this provision is to ensure that if Licensees’ 
use of this License directly or indirectly causes damage to the Property, Licensees shall 
correct such damage.  
 
Specific restorative actions shall include:   
 
• Restore all disturbed area to original condition including seeding. 
• Restore any displaced rip rap at the stormwater pond forebay crossing. 
• Water mains and power cables are located along the well field road.  Have all utilities 

located prior to any digging including post holes. 
• Use care at the stock pile to prevent future erosion of the slopes and repair any silt fence 

damage. 
 

 
3.  Hold Harmless. Licensees agree to indemnify and hold Licensor, and each of them, their 

successors, heirs and assigns, harmless from and against any and all injury and damage 
claims, demands, obligations, judgments, award, expenses, and liabilities of any and 
every kind, including without limitation attorney's fees and all litigation costs and 
expenses, which may be made or arise against or be incurred by Licensor from , due to, 
or relating to Licensees’ conduct or activities on or about the Property, and/or conduct 
or activities of any participants in the Licensees’ sponsored event to include all 
employees, agents, invitees, contractors, and any other persons who may come upon or 
be at or near the Property on behalf of Licensee or because Licensee is using this 
easement. 

 
4.  Term:  This Agreement shall be effective from April 1, 2014 and shall terminate 60 days 

(2 months) after acceptance.  If due to circumstances beyond Licensees’ control, which 
does not allow for the restorative actions to be completed by the above scheduled date, 
Licensee will present to the Licensor, in writing, a revised restoration schedule for their 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
5. Payment:  The Licensor does not require compensation for this License.  However, 

restoration of the property to its original condition as found prior to this event, shall be 
considered compensation for the grant of these rights.  

 
6. Attorneys' Fees:  Should it be necessary for either party to enforce their rights under this 

agreement, then in the event of litigation, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover and collect all costs and reasonable attorney's fees as determined by the court 

106

CANCELLED



resolving the litigation. As used in this entire paragraph, "costs” shall include without 
limitation the actual costs and charges of court reporters, transcription costs of 
depositions, discovery costs, expert witness and consultant's fees, legal messengers 
charges, long distance telephone charges, copying and fax machine charges/costs, 
postage and other mailing costs, and all other out of pocket expenses and charges 
incurred which relate in any way to pursuing enforcement or handling interpretation or 
breach of agreement issues regarding this agreement Reasonable attorney's fees shall 
include without limitation all time spent in consultations with attorneys, and all time 
spent by the prevailing party's attorneys and their legal assistants and staff in handling 
and preparing all aspects of preparation for and conducting arbitration and trial, and 
during any appeals. As used herein, “prevailing party" means the party in whose favor a 
final judgment is rendered.  

 
Further, after award or judgment is entered the prevailing party shall be fully entitled to 
recover against the losing party all future costs, attorneys' fees and all expenses which may 
be incurred in collecting upon and/or enforcing the award or judgment, Including without 
limitation bond costs, sheriffs fees, filing and/or court fees, and all time spent by attorneys 
on behalf of the prevailing party in handling and pursuing collection/enforcement of the 
award or judgment. The prevailing party shall be entitled to provisions in any such award or 
judgment which set forth the within collection or enforcement rights to future costs and 
fees. 

 
7. Successors and Assigns:  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the rights and 

obligations of the parties shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon their 
respective successors and assigns.  This License may not be assigned by Licensees 
without the prior written consent of Licensor. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hands and seals as of the day and year 
first above written. 
 
      COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
             
      S. Paul O'Neal, Chairman 
      Currituck County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 
Mary S. Gilbert 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
(COUNTY SEAL 
 
 
 

107

CANCELLED



       CURRITUCK COUNTY FRATERNAL ORDER 
       OF POLICE 
   
       By:_________________________________ 
 
        
       CURRITUCK FAMILY YMCA 
  
       By:_________________________________ 
 

 

 

 

108

CANCELLED



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

109

CANCELLED



Number TDA2014006

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-526650 Economic Development 150,000$                    
15390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 150,000$                  

150,000$                    150,000$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 21st  day of January, 2014 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Related (15447) - Increase appropriations for construction of water 
and sewer lines for Economic Development projects.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $150,000.

110

CANCELLED



Number TDA2014007

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-511000 Telephone & Postage 50,000$                      
15442-516000 Maintenance & Repair 6,000$                        
15442-514000 Travel 1,000$                        
15442-526200 Promotion 50,000$                    
15442-590000 Capital Outlay 6,000$                      
15442-514500 Training & Education 1,000$                      

57,000$                      57,000$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 21st  day of January, 2014 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Promotion (15442) - Transfer funds for promotion related 
operations for the remainder of this fiscal year.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - No change.

111

CANCELLED



Number TDA2014008

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-587010 T T - Operating Fund 12,000$                      
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax Fund 12,000$                    

12,000$                      12,000$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 21st  day of January, 2014 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Promotion (15442) - Increase appropriations for additional 
promotion at the airport and for Economic Development.  (See B/A 2014051)

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $12,000.

112

CANCELLED



Number TDA2014009

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-561000 Professional Services 10,000$                      
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax Fund 10,000$                    

10,000$                      10,000$                    

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners sitting as the Tourism Development Authority, 
at a meeting on the 21st  day of January, 2014 , passed the following amendment to the 
budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Occupancy Tax - Tourism Promotion (15442) - Increase appropriations for lobbyist to work on 
various tourist related issues.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $10,000.

113

CANCELLED


	Table of Contents
	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action on Proposed Appropriation and Expenditure of Funds for "Project Jessica"
	Project Jessica Resolution

	Presentation by Keith Letchworth, East Carolina Behavioral Health, regarding NC 2-1-1
	Approval of NC Parks and Recreation Trust Fund (PARTF) Assurance For Grant Application
	Project Costs
	Site Plan

	Appointments to Board of Adjustment
	Appointment to Senior Citizens Advisory Board
	Appointment to Library Board
	Approval of January 6, 2014 Minutes
	Consideration of Amendment to Board Minutes of June 3, 2013
	Budget Amendments
	Lottery application - reallocate residual funds from closed projects to the JPK/Moyock Elementary School cafeteria roof replacements
	Award Contract for Walnut Island Asphalt Overlay Project
	RPC Contract

	Award Engineering Contract for Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District (OSWSD) Wastewater Expansion Environmental Assessment
	OSWSD EA Contract

	Right of Entry and License Agreement for Mud Run
	TDA Budget Amendments



